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LETTER FROM THE  
CHANCELLOR

The year 2020 was one of adversity, unpredictability, and hardship for so many. It was also, at 
UNCG, a year of adaptability, resilience, and inspiration in so many ways. The multiple forces that 
we have had to face as an institution -- a global pandemic, a massive societal shift related to racial 
justice, a divisive political climate -- have all come in the context of major economic challenges. 
From reductions in state budgets to the implications of a small decline in undergraduate 
enrollment and credit hours here, UNCG has had to pursue its mission with new and real 
constraints on our resources. This is why I am so proud that we accomplished so much to educate 
students, transform lives, do groundbreaking research, and make a positive impact on the quality 
of life and prosperity of our community, region, and state.
	 First, as a clear indication that our commitment to student success is making a meaningful 
impact – especially on our freshmen – we can report that our first-year retention rates (the number 
of freshmen from last year who returned this year) leapt by 5% to 80.5%. That is a record for 
UNCG. Nationally, the average first-year student retention rate stands at 73.8%, with only 61.7% 
actually staying at their starting institutions. Retention progress of this magnitude in a single year 
is very unusual, and a strong sign that our recent efforts to reach best-in-class graduation rates are 
paying dividends in student success.
	 UNCG graduate student enrollment was up by 4.3%, and up nearly 12% over the last 5 
years. This suggests that recent growth in research funding, new program launches, and a rising 
reputation among several graduate programs, have combined to attract an increasing number of 
highly qualified students. The University reported $35M in research grant revenue for the current 
fiscal year (up nearly 18% over the prior year). This growth in grant revenue does not include $7M 
in grant funds which have been committed to the University but not yet reported as revenue per 
GASB requirements. 
	 Additionally, total online enrollment rose by about 5%, fueled by strong growth (18%) 
among online graduate students. We also saw a slight increase in continuing online students – a 
testament to student success initiatives that help keep students enrolled and moving toward 
achieving their goal of earning a college degree.
	 We also know that once our students achieve that degree, their UNCG education pays off. 
For the second straight year, UNCG was ranked number 1 in North Carolina for social mobility, 
and we climbed 4 spots to number 23 in the nation. This category highlights the institutions 
that are most successful in enrolling and graduating students who come from disadvantaged 
backgrounds, propelling them forward to greater economic opportunities.
	 These are tremendous achievements by our institution. They demonstrate our rock solid 
foundation.  And we were able to accomplish all of this while taking the vital, complex steps 
needed in the face of COVID-19 to keep our classes operating online, in-person, and in hybrid 
form for the entire semester.  Students who chose to live on campus have been able to do so 
without interruption this Fall. And we have kept our community as safe as possible. This will 
remain our focus and top priority as we move into the Spring and beyond.
	 We have managed our resources carefully, strategically, and with the long-term health of 
UNCG and its constituents in mind. We have the right leadership in place, and a path forward 
that will help us maintain our strength and continue to invest in growth opportunities even as 
we face the economic and other challenges that lie ahead. We have a shared fate with our state, 
our community, and each other. In good times, we celebrate together. In the face of tough times, 
we must also come together. I am confident in our plans, our team, and our future. UNCG has 
survived many challenges in the past. We are facing another. And we will get through it together.

Sincerely,

FRANKLIN D. GILL IAM, JR.
Chancellor
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LETTER FROM THE  
VICE CHANCELLOR FOR FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

2020 has been a historic year, presenting challenges across the world, our 
nation, our state and UNCG in dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic. 
I am thankful for the efforts of all UNCG faculty and staff during 
the pandemic, but especially in the professionals charged with the 
stewardship and reporting of the financial resources entrusted to us by 
students, parents, taxpayers and benefactors. They have again earned a 
“clean” audit, the hallmark of a professional finance team.
	 I am pleased to present the University’s Financial Report for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. The accompanying financial statements are 
presented in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) pronouncements, which established standards for 
external financial reporting. The information within this financial 
report is accurate in all material respects and the University’s system 
of internal controls is sound and sufficient to disclose any material 
deficiencies to the auditors and audit committee. The report is 
comprised of four sections: management’s discussion and analysis; the 
financial statements; the related financial footnote disclosures; and the 
required supplementary information.
	 The financial report includes the University financial statement 
as well as four blended component units which include The UNCG 
Excellence Foundation, Inc., The Capital Facilities Foundation, Inc., 
The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Weatherspoon Arts 
Foundation, and The University of North Carolina at Greensboro 
Investment Fund, Inc. Although legally separate, these component units 
are reported as if they were part of the University.
	 As I mention in my opening paragraph, the COVID-19 pandemic 
has presented the University with many challenges, both operationally 
and fiscally, during the 2020 fiscal year. These challenges included the 
shift to remote work and distance learning, on March 20, 2020, for both 
the Spring and Summer sessions which had a significant impact on 
University auxiliary operations. These adverse financial impacts were 
partially offset by $4.2 million in institutional funding received from the 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) which was applied 
toward covering expenses and lost revenue resulting from the shift to 
remote work and distance learning. 
	 The shift to remote work and distance learning had a negative 
impact on operating revenues which declined by $2.2 million or 1.1% 
compared to the prior year. Increases in student tuition and fees ($3.2 
million) and grants and contracts ($5.3 million) revenues were offset by a 
decline in sales and services revenues attributable to refunds to students 
for unused housing days and dining meals in the Spring Semester. This 
decline in revenues was further exacerbated by the complete loss of 
housing and dining revenues associated with the Summer Sessions and 
summer camp programs.
	 Overall operating expenses increased by $28.2 million or 6.6% over 
the prior year. The largest increase was in Scholarships and Fellowships 
and is directly related to the COVID-19 pandemic and includes $8.0 
million in federal funding that was disbursed directly to the students 
with the most financial need in the form of financial aid.



THE UNCG FINANCIAL REPORT 2019-2020    5

LETTER FROM THE  
VICE CHANCELLOR FOR FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

	 Investment returns remained strong with the Investment Fund 
earning a total return of 2.6% for the period ended June 30, 2020, 
contributing to an overall investment income of $12.8 million for the 
fiscal year. While a 2.6% total return seems small, that performance puts 
UNCG among the top quartile endowment performances across the 
Cambridge Associates endowment universe in this persistent, historic 
low interest rate environment.
	 Overall nonoperating revenues increased by a modest 0.6%, despite 
receiving $12.2 million in federal COVID-19 relief funds during the fiscal 
year. An additional $40.3 million in Capital Grants from the State was 
received for the construction of the Nursing and Instructional Building. 
This four-story building will be opened and occupied in January 2021 
and will allow for enrollment expansion in the School of Nursing as 
well as providing teaching and flexible laboratory space for the Biology, 
Chemistry, Health and Human Services, and Nursing programs.
	 Despite the adverse fiscal effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
financial position of the University remains strong. UNC Greensboro 
remains committed to generating opportunities for socioeconomic 
growth for its students and graduates. In the next fiscal year and 
beyond, the University will continue its strong commitment to financial 
stewardship and will maximize resources to continue to strengthen 
UNC Greensboro’s mission of enabling social mobility, fostering 
academic and research excellence and making valued and lasting 
cultural and financial contributions to our region.

Sincerely,

BOB SHEA
Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration
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A LEGACY ALL HER OWN
Fourth. Rachel Rouse is the fourth generation UNC Greensboro 
Spartan in her family. The UNCG Bryan School of Business and 
Economics student is following in her father’s accounting footsteps; 
and she’s lived in the same residence hall that her grandmother and 
great grandmother did years ago. The Greensboro native is making 
college memories all her own; blazing her own path on the soccer 
field; coordinating academic tutoring sessions for elementary and 
middle school students with her teammates; and scoring valuable 
business connections at leadership conferences with the goal of one 
day serving her community and country. Go Rachel!



DESTINED FOR 
GLOBAL SUCCESS

When Abdullah Oguz’s scooter battery failed on campus, 
his fellow UNC Greensboro graduate students pushed him 
to where he needed to go. The Turkey native values such 
teamwork, in-person and online. He is a doctoral student 
researching social behavior and business performance in the 
global virtual workplace. The future professor seeks ways to 
discourage and prevent cyberbullying, which enhance the 
ability of global virtual teams to work together to reach their 
final destination.
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DREAM TEAM
Selina and Eric Laws met while pursuing their master’s degrees in chemistry. Now 
both PhD students at the Joint School of Nanoscience and Nanoengineering, they 
work in labs just down the hall from each other, making individual discoveries as 
they build a life together. They describe the process as “scary yet rewarding,” but 
their advisors have guided and encouraged them throughout their experience. Eric 
plans for a life centered on teaching, while Selina has leading a research lab in 
mind – and both are absorbing all JSNN has to offer, from outstanding research 
facilities to inspiring mentorship.

“It’s a place with high expectations,” says Selina. “But every day we’re surprised at 
just how much we can do.”
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CHANGING COURSE,
CHANGING LIVES

Travis Barber has always wanted to teach. After 
working as a machinist, the U.S. Army Veteran 
pivoted to pursue his dream at UNC Greensboro. 
Enrolled within the School of Education’s Haggai 
Academy and supported by the campus’ Military-
Affiliated Services office, Travis will be the first man 
in his family of farmers to graduate from a four-year 
college. Upon graduation, he plans to teach middle-
schoolers, where he believes he can make the most 
impact as an educator. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

The University of North Carolina at Greensboro (the “University”) provides the following management discussion 
and analysis (MD&A) as an overview of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This discussion, 
the preceding transmittal letters, the following financial statements, required supplementary information, and the 
related notes to the financial statements have been prepared by management and comprise the University’s complete 
financial report.

The University is a constituent institution of the multi-campus University of North Carolina System, which is a 
component unit of the State of North Carolina and an integral part of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. The purpose of the MD&A is to identify significant transactions that have financial impact on the institution 
and to highlight trends. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in 
its entirety by, the related financial statements, required supplementary information, and notes to the financial 
statements.

USING THE FINANCIAL REPORT

The following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) principles, which establish standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and 
universities:

	 • Statement of Net Position
	 • Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
	 • Statement of Cash Flows

Also included are the notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information which are essential 
to a comprehensive understanding of the financial position of the University. GASB standards require that assets 
and liabilities be separated into current and noncurrent categories and that financial statements be presented on a 
consolidated basis to focus on the University as a whole. Blended component units of the University include:

	 • The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc.
	 • The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Weatherspoon Arts Foundation
	 • Capital Facilities Foundation, Inc.
	 • The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Investment Fund, Inc.

A description of each blended component unit is discussed in Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on the University’s operations and financial results for fiscal 
year 2020. On March 20, 2020, the University shifted to remote work and distance learning for both the Spring and 
Summer sessions resulting in significant student refunds for unused dining and housing services. The University 
received $8.0 million in federal funding from the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) of the 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and disbursed these funds directly to the students 
most severely affected by the pandemic. In addition, the University received $4.2 million in institutional funding 
which was applied toward covering expenses associated with significant changes to the delivery of instruction due 
to the transition to remote learning and to partially reimburse dining operations for lost revenues resulting from 
the shift to remote work and distance learning. More information on the impact of COVID-19 can be found in Note 
17 - The Coronavirus Pandemic Emergency.
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A condensed Statement of Net Position is reflected in the following table.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
The Statement of Net Position is a snapshot of the University’s financial position on the last day of the fiscal year and 
presents assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and deferred outflows of resources and the resulting net position. The 
Statement of Net Position is used to determine the extent of assets available for operations, as well as the amount 
owed to vendors, bond holders, and other creditors.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS
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ASSETS
Total assets of the University increased by $31.8 million over the prior year. This increase is the combination of a $6.7 
million decrease in current assets and an increase of $38.5 million in noncurrent assets.

Current assets decreased as a result of an $11.4 million decrease in cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted and 
restricted), a $4.5 million increase in accounts receivable and a $0.2 million increase in other current assets. Dining 
and housing refunds issued to students as a result of transitioning to remote learning, as well as specific costs 
incurred to address the COVID-19 pandemic caused current cash and cash equivalents to decrease by $9.5 million. 
Accounts receivable increased over the prior year due to the recording of $4.4 million in accounts receivable from 
the federal government for reimbursement of specific costs related to COVID-19. This reimbursement will be 
received in fiscal year 2021.

Noncurrent assets increased as a result of an $34.2 million increase in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
$5.0 million increase in cash and cash equivalents (restricted), and a $0.7 million decrease in all other noncurrent 
assets. The increase is predominately due to the capitalization of construction costs associated with the Nursing and 
Instructional Building, as well as the transfer of unrestricted cash to repair and replacement projects. The University 
continues to invest in the addition and improvement of buildings and equipment on campus as is reflected on the 
Capital Assets graph below.

LIABILITIES
Total liabilities of the University increased by $34.6 million as of June 30, 2020. Included within this change noncurrent 
liabilities increased by $35.4 million while current liabilities decreased by $0.8 million. This overall increase in total 
liabilities consists of a $47.5 million increase in the net other postemployment employment benefits (OPEB) liability 
related to GASB Statement No. 75, a $4.5 million increase in net pension liability, a $16.6 million decrease in notes and 
bonds payable, a $0.8 million decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and a $0.1 million decrease in all 
other liability categories, both current and noncurrent.

The University has recognized its proportionate share of the State of North Carolina’s net OPEB liability for fiscal year 
2020, which increased when compared to the prior year. Additional information on the University’s OPEB plans is 
provided in Note 14 of the notes to the financial statements and in the required supplementary information.

The University has also recognized its proportionate share of the State of North Carolina’s net pension liability for 
fiscal year 2020, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68. The overall net pension liability for the State of North 
Carolina increased in fiscal year 2020, thus the University’s Statement of Net Position reflects a similar increase in net 
pension liability. Additional information on the University’s pension plans is provided in Note 13 of the notes to the 
financial statements and in the required supplementary information.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS

	 2016		  2017		  2018		  2019		  2020		

900M

800M

700M

600M

500M

400M

300M

200M

100M

0M

CAPITAL ASSETS 2016-2020

$ 
M

IL
LI

O
NS



THE UNCG FINANCIAL REPORT 2019-2020    13

The decrease in notes and bonds payable is related to a reduction in principal due to scheduled bond and note principal 
payments. The decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities consists of a $4.6 million decrease in capital asset 
related payables, due to the completion of the fire alarm upgrade project for the Weil-Winfield residence hall, the 
Steam Distribution System replacement project, and the substantial completion of construction on the Nursing and 
Instructional Building, an increase in accounts payable of $3.6 million primarily attributable to increases in research 
activity, and a $0.2 million increase in payroll liabilities.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources increased by $26.0 million due to increases in deferred outflows related to OPEB which 
represent the University’s contributions to this plan during the fiscal year, the proportionate share of the accumulated 
difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB investments, changes in actuarial assumptions, and 
changes between employer contributions and the proportionate share of contributions for the plan.

Deferred inflows of resources decreased by $33.1 million primarily due to the decrease of deferred inflows related 
to OPEB which represents the University’s proportionate share of the accumulated difference between actual and 
expected experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, and changes between employer contributions and the 
proportionate share of contributions for the plan (refer to Note 14 of the notes to the financial statements for details).

NET POSITION
Total net position increased by $56.3 million over the prior year. Net position of the University is comprised of the 
following four categories:

	 • Net Investment in Capital Assets
	 • Restricted Nonexpendable
	 • Restricted Expendable
	 • Unrestricted

Net investment in capital assets increased by $52.5 million due to the capitalization of construction costs associated 
with the Nursing and Instructional Building and the Ragsdale-Mendenhall residence hall renovation.

Restricted nonexpendable net position increased by $4.9 million and represents endowed gifts received and invested 
during the year.

Restricted expendable net position decreased by $1.8 million primarily due to the winding down of the Perkins Loan 
program.

The University’s unrestricted net position continues to be significantly affected by reporting changes required by 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Both GASB statements require the University to 
recognize its proportionate share of the net position of the State Pension Plan and Retiree Health Benefit Fund (RHBF) 
as a component of unrestricted net position. The total impact of recognizing the University’s share of the State’s 
Pension Plan and Retiree Health Benefit was a $418.6 million decrease in unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2020. 
Refer to Note 10 - Net Position for additional information.

Unrestricted net position before the recognition of the proportionate share of the State plans was $110.4 million, down 
$7.4 million over the prior year. This amount represents unrestricted funds held by the University and the blended 
component units of the University and includes authorized carryforwards by the State.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Changes in total net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position are based on the activity presented in 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The purpose of the statement is to present the 
revenues earned by the institution, both operating and nonoperating, and the expenses incurred by the institution, 
operating and nonoperating, and any other revenues earned by the institution.

Operating revenues are earned by providing goods and services to the various constituencies of the institution in 
the process of carrying out the mission of the University. Operating expenses are those expenses incurred to acquire 
or produce the goods and services provided in return for the operating revenues and to carry out the mission of the 
University.

Nonoperating revenues are revenues earned for which goods and services are not provided. State appropriations and 
federal financial aid awards are included as nonoperating revenue in accordance with GASB guidelines even though 
these revenues are instrumental to the University’s mission and operations. Nonoperating expenses are expenses 
not directly related to the normal operations of the University (e.g., interest expense and other fees on capital asset 
related debt) and are netted against nonoperating revenues on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position. Other revenues include capital contributions and additions to the principal of permanent and term 
endowments.

A condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is reflected in the following table.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position reflects an increase in net position of $56.3 million 
at the end of the year. Total revenues for the fiscal year were $523.6 million, up $11.0 million (2.1%) from the prior 
year. Total expenses were $467.4 million, up $28.0 million (6.4%) from the prior year. Highlights of the information 
presented on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position are as follows:

•	 Operating revenues decreased by $2.2 million (1.1%), from the prior year. Sales and services, net, experienced a 
decline of $10.7 million as a result of COVID-19 impacts to housing, dining, and parking operations. Students 
were issued refunds from sales and services revenues for the unused housing days and dining meals in 
the Spring Semester and the University also experienced a complete loss of housing and dining revenues 
associated with the Summer Sessions and summer camp programs. Grants and contracts (federal, state, and 
nongovernmental) increased by $5.3 million (17.7%) over the prior year due to increases in federally funded 
research activity at the University and to increases in state grant funding for community-based projects. 

•	 Operating expenses, scholarships and fellowships, increased by $14.7 million (49.1%) over the prior year. There 
are two primary factors, both related to the COVID-19 pandemic, for this substantial increase. The first is the $8.0 
million in funding from the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act, which was disbursed directly to the students most severely affected by the 
pandemic. Financial reporting guidelines from GASB and NACUBO require the full amount of these awards 
to be reported as scholarships and fellowships expense without consideration in the scholarship discounting 
calculation. The second factor is the housing and dining refunds, discussed earlier, significantly reduced the 
scholarship discount amount since these student costs, typically covered from financial aid, were refunded to 
the student thus increasing scholarship and fellowship expense. Salaries and benefits increased by $14.4 million 
(5.3%) from the prior year due to a $9.1 million increase in pension expense and increases in Exempt from Human 
Resources Act (EHRA) salaries.

•	 The Federal Aid - COVID-19 amount of $12.2 million includes a HEERF student allocation of $8.0 million (described 
in the preceding paragraph) and an institutional allocation of $4.2 million. The institutional allocation is being used 
to cover costs associated with significant changes to the delivery of instruction due to COVID-19 and to partially 
reimburse dining operations for lost revenues due to the University’s closure on March 20, 2020. Please refer to 
Note 17 - The Coronavirus Pandemic Emergency for more information on the Federal and State Funds received 
specifically for the COVID-19 pandemic. State appropriations increased slightly by $1.9 million (1.1%) over the prior 
year due to increases in funding connected to benefit rate changes. Noncapital contributions decreased by $6.7 
million primarily due to a reduction in current restricted gifts. Investment income decreased by $6.1 million, to an 
investment gain of $12.8 million compared with an investment gain of $18.9 million in the prior year. This decrease 
is the result of a significant increase in unrealized losses on investments due to decreases in overall financial 
markets near the end of the fiscal year.

•	 Other revenues for fiscal year 2020 consist of capital contributions and additions to endowments. The University 
received capital grants of $39.8 million during fiscal year 2020 primarily for the funding of the construction of the 
new Nursing and Instructional Building. The University received $7.6 million in endowment gifts during the fiscal 
year which was a substantial increase of $3.7 million over the prior fiscal year.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
During fiscal year 2020, the fire alarm upgrade project for the Weil-Winfield residence hall and the Steam Distribution 
System replacement project were completed and capitalized.

Major projects included in construction in progress consisted of the Nursing and Instructional Building and 
renovations to the Ragsdale-Mendenhall residence hall.

On April 1, 2020, the University issued $9,548,000 in General Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 with an average interest 
rate of 1.72%. The bonds were issued for a current refunding of $9,475,000 of outstanding UNC System Pooled Revenue 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS
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Bonds, Series 2010B-2 with an average interest rate of 4.85%. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt 
service payments by $1,021,713 over the next six years and resulted in an economic gain of $967,180.

For additional information concerning Capital Assets and Debt Administration, see Notes 6 and 8 in the notes to the 
financial statements.

ECONOMIC AND  
STRATEGIC OUTLOOK
The COVID-19 pandemic and the measures 
imposed by state and local governments and 
health departments have significantly affected 
the University as discussed in previous sections 
of this MD&A. Although the University is 
currently open for the Fall 2020 semester with 
a mixture of face-to-face, online, and hybrid 
classes and on campus students occupying the 
residence halls, the pandemic has predictably 
caused a drop in the Fall 2020 enrollment 
headcount of 432 students, or 2.1%. Enrollment 
trend data is shown in the chart at right.
 
The University is directly addressing enrollment 
through the establishment of the Division of 
Enrollment Management which reports directly to the Chancellor and is responsible for facilitating the recruitment, 
retention, and graduation of a talented and diverse student population. While overall headcount enrollment declined, 
the University did see an increase in graduate student enrollment of 4.3% and an increase of 5.0% in total online 
enrollment when compared to the Fall 2019 semester.

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic the University has maintained its commitment to research as evidenced by an 
increase of $5.3 million in grant activity compared to the prior year. The University will continue to invest in 
research infrastructure to drive faculty scholarship, to create a robust scholarly environment, and to create a 
greater community impact.

In March of 2016, North Carolina voters approved the Connect NC Bonds, which provided the University with $105.0 
million for the construction of a new Nursing and Instructional Building on the main campus. Construction began 
in early 2018 and will result in a four-story structure that will house the entire School of Nursing, which is currently 
located in four separate campus buildings. This facility, which will open in January 2021, will provide teaching and 
flexible laboratory space for the Biology, Chemistry, and Health and Human Services departments, and will enhance 
the University’s commitment to impactful research in the sciences and health fields.

The University will continue to invest resources in transformative activities designed to optimize student success 
and to enrich the academic enterprise of the University, while remaining committed to recruiting and graduating a 
student body that reflects the diversity of our community and increases access to students historically underserved in 
higher education. Through these investments and commitments, the University will be well positioned for growth in 
the post pandemic world and will continue to be a national model of how to expertly blend opportunity, excellence, 
and impact that transforms the lives of students by increasing their social mobility, and contributes to the future 
prosperity of the state and region.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION  
AND ANALYSIS
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REPORT OF THE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Board of Trustees
The University of North Carolina at Greensboro
Greensboro, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro 
(University), a constituent institution of the multi-campus University of North Carolina System, which is a 
component unit of the State of North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not 
audit the financial statements of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Investment Fund, Inc., 
which represent 12.74 percent and 1.01 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the University; 
The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc., which represent 11.96 percent and 1.75 percent, respectively, of 
the assets and revenues of the University; nor the Capital Facilities Foundation, Inc., which represent 1.06 
percent and 0.01 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the University. Those statements 
were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included for those entities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. The financial statements of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Investment 
Fund, Inc., The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc., and the Capital Facilities Foundation, Inc. were not 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the University’s preparation and 
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fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The University of North Carolina at 
Greensboro, as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters – Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements as a whole. 
The letters from University management and other accompanying information is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 4, 2020 
on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. The report 
on internal control and compliance has been issued under a separate cover in the Financial Statement Audit 
Report of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro published by this office.

Beth A. Wood, CPA
State Auditor
Raleigh, North Carolina
December 4, 2020
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity - The concept underlying the definition of the financial reporting entity is 
that elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. As required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the financial reporting entity 
includes both the primary government and all of its component units. An organization other than 
a primary government serves as a nucleus for a reporting entity when it issues separate financial 
statements. The University of North Carolina at Greensboro (University) is a constituent institution of 
the multi-campus University of North Carolina System, which is a component unit of the State of North 
Carolina and an integral part of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The accompanying financial statements present all funds belonging to the University and its 
component units. While the Board of Governors of the University of North Carolina System has 
ultimate responsibility, the Chancellor, the Board of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees of the 
Endowment Fund have delegated responsibilities for financial accountability of the University’s 
funds. The University’s component units are blended in the University’s financial statements. See 
below for further discussion of the University’s component units. Other related foundations and 
similar nonprofit corporations for which the University is not financially accountable are not part of 
the accompanying financial statements.

Blended Component Units - Although legally separate, the following component units of the University 
are reported as if they were part of the University: The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc.; The University 
of North Carolina at Greensboro Weatherspoon Arts Foundation; the Capital Facilities Foundation, Inc.; 
and The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Investment Fund, Inc.

The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc. is governed by a 49-member board consisting of three ex officio 
directors and 46 appointed directors. The Foundation’s purpose is to aid, support, and promote teaching, 
research, and service in the various educational, scientific, scholarly, professional, artistic, and creative 
endeavors of the University. Because the directors of the Foundation are appointed by the members of 
The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Board of Trustees and the Foundation’s sole purpose is 
to benefit The University of North Carolina at Greensboro as long as The University of North Carolina 
at Greensboro qualifies as an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1954 (or corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue law), its financial 
statements have been blended with those of the University.

The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Weatherspoon Arts Foundation is governed by a 
29-member board consisting of three ex officio directors and 26 appointed directors. The Foundation’s 
purpose is to acquire by gift, purchase, lease, loan, or other means of conveyance works of art and to 
maintain and enhance the arts collection teaching, research, and public services purposes exclusively 
for the use and benefit of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro. Because the directors of the 
Foundation are appointed by the members of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Board of 
Trustees and the Foundation’s sole purpose is to benefit The University of North Carolina at Greensboro, 
its financial statements have been blended with those of the University.

The Capital Facilities Foundation, Inc. is governed by a nine-member board consisting of four ex 
officio directors and five appointed directors. The Foundation’s purpose is to enhance the University’s 
educational mission through assisting with the acquisition, development, financing, construction, 
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management, and operation of capital assets for the University. Because the directors of the Foundation 
are appointed by the members of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Board of Trustees and 
the Foundation’s sole purpose is to benefit The University of North Carolina at Greensboro, its financial 
statements have been blended with those of the University.

The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Investment Fund, Inc. (the Fund) was formed to 
consolidate the endowment pool investments of The Endowment Fund of The University of North 
Carolina at Greensboro, the blended component units of the University, and certain affiliated entities 
and is classified as a governmental external investment pool. The Fund is the fiscal agent for the pool, 
and all units of the pool are owned by internal and external participants. The internal participants of 
the pool are The Endowment Fund of The University of North Carolina at Greensboro and The UNCG 
Excellence Foundation, Inc. The external participant of the pool is The Associated Campus Ministries of 
The University of North Carolina at Greensboro. The Fund is governed by a 10-member board consisting 
of three ex officio directors and seven appointed directors. The Investment Fund’s purpose is to support 
the University by operating an investment fund for charitable, nonprofit foundations, associations, 
trusts, endowments, and funds that are organized and operated primarily to support the University. 
Because the directors of the Investment Fund are appointed by the members of The University of North 
Carolina at Greensboro Board of Trustees and the Investment Fund’s primary purpose is to benefit The 
University of North Carolina at Greensboro, its financial statements have been blended with those of 
the University.

An electronic version of the separate financial statements for the Foundations and the Investment Fund 
is available by accessing the UNCG Finance and Administration home page (https://faa.uncg.edu/) and 
clicking on “Foundation Finance”, then “Audit Reports”, or by calling (336) 334-5200. 

Condensed combining information regarding blended component units is provided in Note 19.

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, 
the full scope of the University’s activities is considered to be a single business-type activity and 
accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial statements.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the University have been prepared using the 
economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, 
revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been 
incurred, regardless of the timing of the cash flows.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the University receives (or gives) value without directly giving 
(or receiving) equal value in exchange, include state appropriations, certain grants, and donations. 
Revenues are recognized, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met, if probable of collection.

B.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents - This classification includes undeposited receipts, petty cash, cash on 
deposit with private bank accounts, cash on deposit with fiscal agents, and deposits held by the State 
Treasurer in the Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). The STIF maintained by the State Treasurer 
has the general characteristics of a demand deposit account in that participants may deposit and 
withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.

Investments - To the extent available, investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market 
prices in active markets on a trade-date basis. Investments in partnerships are stated at net asset 
value based on the fair value of the partnership’s assets. Fair value of the partnership investments is 
based upon the General Partner’s best judgement in estimating the fair value of these investments. 
Additional information regarding the fair value measurement of investments is disclosed in Note 3. 
Because of the inherent uncertainty in the use of estimates, values that are based on estimates may 
differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments. The 
net change in the value of investments is recognized as a component of investment income.

Endowment investments include the principal amount of gifts and bequests that, according to 
donor restrictions, must be held in perpetuity or for a specified period of time, along with any 
accumulated investment earnings on such amounts. Further, endowment investments also include 
amounts internally designated by the University for investment in an endowment capacity (i.e. quasi-
endowments), along with accumulated investment earnings on such amounts. Land and other real 
estate held as investments by endowments are reported at fair value, consistent with how investments 
are generally reported.
 
Receivables - Receivables consist of tuition and fees charged to students and charges for auxiliary 
enterprises’ sales and services. Receivables also include amounts due from the federal government, 
state and local governments, private sources in connection with reimbursement of allowable 
expenditures made pursuant to contracts and grants, pledges that are verifiable, measurable, and 
expected to be collected and available for expenditures for which the resource provider’s conditions 
have been satisfied, and accrued interest receivable from investments and student loans. Receivables 
are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
Inventories - Inventories, consisting of expendable supplies and merchandise for resale, are valued at 
cost using the last invoice cost method. 
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H. Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition or acquisition value at date of 
donation in the case of gifts. Donated capital assets acquired prior to July 1, 2015 are stated at fair 
value as of the date of donation. The value of assets constructed includes all material direct and 
indirect construction costs.

The University capitalizes assets that have a value or cost of $5,000 or greater at the date of acquisition 
and an estimated useful life of more than one year. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
in the following manner:

 
 

Restricted Assets - Certain resources are reported as restricted assets because restrictions on asset 
use change the nature or normal understanding of the availability of the asset. Resources that are 
not available for current operations and are reported as restricted include resources restricted for the 
acquisition or construction of capital assets, resources legally segregated for the payment of principal 
and interest as required by debt covenants, and endowment and other restricted investments.
 
Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants - Funds held in trust for pool participants represent the 
external portion of the University’s governmental external investment pool more fully described in 
Note 2. 
 
Noncurrent Long-Term Liabilities - Noncurrent long-term liabilities include principal amounts of 
long-term debt and other long-term liabilities that will not be paid within the next fiscal year. Debt 
is defined as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may 
be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the 
contractual obligation is established. Long-term debt includes: revenue bonds payable, bonds from 
direct placements, and notes from direct borrowings. Other long-term liabilities include: compensated 
absences, annuities and life income payable, net pension liability, net other postemployment benefits 
(OPEB) liability, and workers’ compensation. 

Revenue bonds payable are reported net of unamortized premiums. The University amortizes bond 
premiums over the life of the bonds using the proportionate-to-stated interest method. Deferred gains 
and losses on refundings are amortized over the life of the old debt or new debt (whichever is shorter) 
using the straight-line method, and are aggregated as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position. Issuance costs are expensed in the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

The net pension liability represents the University’s proportionate share of the collective net pension 
liability reported in the State of North Carolina’s 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This 
liability represents the University’s portion of the collective total pension liability less the fiduciary net 
position of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System. See Note 13 for further information 
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regarding the University’s policies for recognizing liabilities, expenses, deferred outflows of resources, 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. 

The net OPEB liability represents the University’s proportionate share of the collective net OPEB 
liability reported in the State of North Carolina’s 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This 
liability represents the University’s portion of the collective total OPEB liability less the fiduciary 
net position of the Retiree Health Benefit Fund. See Note 14 for further information regarding the 
University’s policies for recognizing liabilities, expenses, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB. 
 
Compensated Absences - The University’s policy is to record the cost of vacation leave when earned. 
The policy provides for a maximum accumulation of unused vacation leave of 30 days which can be 
carried forward each January 1 or for which an employee can be paid upon termination of employment. 
When classifying compensated absences into current and noncurrent, leave is considered taken using 
a last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. Also, any accumulated vacation leave in excess of 30 days at year-
end is converted to sick leave. Under this policy, the accumulated vacation leave for each employee at 
June 30 equals the leave carried forward at the previous December 31 plus the leave earned, less the 
leave taken between January 1 and June 30. 

In addition to the vacation leave described above, compensated absences include the accumulated 
unused portion of the special annual leave bonuses awarded by the North Carolina General Assembly. 
The bonus leave balance on December 31 is retained by employees and transferred into the next 
calendar year. It is not subject to the limitation on annual leave carried forward described above and 
is not subject to conversion to sick leave.

There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave because the University has no obligation to pay 
sick leave upon termination or retirement. However, additional service credit for retirement pension 
benefits is given for accumulated sick leave upon retirement.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption 
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense) until then. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) 
until then.

Net Position - The University’s net position is classified as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This represents the University’s total investment in capital assets, 
net of outstanding liabilities related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but 
not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of net investment 
in capital assets. Additionally, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that 
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets or related debt are 
also included in this component of net position. 

Restricted Net Position - Nonexpendable - Nonexpendable restricted net position includes 
endowments and similar type assets whose use is limited by donors or other outside sources, and, as 
a condition of the gift, the principal is to be maintained in perpetuity.
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Restricted Net Position - Expendable - Expendable restricted net position includes resources for 
which the University is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions 
imposed by external parties.

Unrestricted Net Position - Unrestricted net position includes resources derived from student tuition 
and fees, sales and services, unrestricted gifts, royalties, and interest income. It also includes the 
net position of accrued employee benefits such as compensated absences, workers’ compensation, 
pension plans, and other postemployment benefits.

Restricted and unrestricted resources are tracked using a fund accounting system and are spent in 
accordance with established fund authorities. Fund authorities provide rules for the fund activity 
and are separately established for restricted and unrestricted activities. When both restricted and 
unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, the decision for funding is transactional based 
within the departmental management system in place at the University. For projects funded by tax-
exempt debt proceeds and other sources, the debt proceeds are always used first. Both restricted 
and unrestricted net position include consideration of deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources. See Note 10 for further information regarding deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources that had a significant effect on unrestricted net position.

Scholarship Discounts - Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues from University 
charges are reported net of scholarship discounts in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position. The scholarship discount is the difference between the actual charge for 
goods and services provided by the University and the amount that is paid by students or by third parties 
on the students’ behalf. Student financial assistance grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, state, 
or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as nonoperating revenues in the accompanying Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. To the extent that revenues from these programs 
are used to satisfy tuition, fees, and other charges, the University has recorded a scholarship discount.

Revenue and Expense Recognition - The University classifies its revenues and expenses as operating 
or nonoperating in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with the University’s principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues 
include activities that have characteristics of exchange transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, 
(2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, (3) certain federal, state, and local grants and contracts 
that are essentially contracts for services, and (4) interest earned on loans. Operating expenses are all 
expense transactions incurred other than those related to capital and noncapital financing or investing 
activities as defined by GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust 
Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of nonexchange transactions. 
Revenues from nonexchange transactions that represent subsidies or gifts to the University, as well as 
investment income, are considered nonoperating since these are either investing, capital, or noncapital 
financing activities. Capital contributions are presented separately after nonoperating revenues and 
expenses.
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Internal Sales Activities - Certain institutional auxiliary operations provide goods and services to 
University departments, as well as to its customers. These institutional auxiliary operations include 
activities such as the Fuel Depot, Postal Operations, Printing Services, Telecommunications, and 
Telephone Services. In addition, the University has other miscellaneous sales and service units 
that operated either on a reimbursement or charge basis. All internal sales activities to University 
departments from auxiliary operations and sales and service units have been eliminated in the 
accompanying financial statements. These eliminations are recorded by removing the revenue and 
expense in the auxiliary operations and sales and service units and, if significant, allocating any 
residual balances to those departments receiving the goods and services during the year.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits - Unless specifically exempt, the University is required by North Carolina General Statute  
147-77 to deposit moneys received with the State Treasurer or with a depository institution in the name 
of the State Treasurer. However, the University of North Carolina Board of Governors, pursuant to 
G.S. 116-36.1, may authorize the University to deposit its institutional trust funds in interest-bearing 
accounts and other investments authorized by the Board of Governors, without regard to any statute 
or rule of law relating to the investment of funds by fiduciaries. Although specifically exempted, 
the University may voluntarily deposit institutional trust funds, endowment funds, special funds, 
revenue bond proceeds, debt service funds, and funds received for services rendered by health care 
professionals with the State Treasurer. Special funds consist of moneys for intercollegiate athletics 
and agency funds held directly by the University.

At June 30, 2020, the amount shown on the Statement of Net Position as cash and cash equivalents 
includes $129,166,725, which represents the University’s equity position in the State Treasurer’s Short-
Term Investment Fund (STIF). The STIF (a portfolio within the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an 
external investment pool that is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission or subject 
to any other regulatory oversight and does not have a credit rating) had a weighted average maturity of 
1.3 years as of June 30, 2020. Assets and shares of the STIF are valued at fair value. Deposit and investment 
risks associated with the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (which includes the State Treasurer’s STIF) are 
included in the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer Investment Programs’ separately issued 
audit report. This separately issued report can be obtained from the Department of State Treasurer, 3200 
Atlantic Avenue, Raleigh, NC 27604 or can be accessed from the Department of State Treasurer’s website 
at https://www.nctreasurer.com/ in the Audited Financial Statements section.

Cash on hand at June 30, 2020 was $33,274. The carrying amount of the University’s deposits not 
with the State Treasurer was $11,602,291, and the bank balance was $11,730,320. Custodial credit risk 
is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the University’s deposits may not be returned to it. The 
University does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2020, $10,356,906 of 
the University’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and uncollateralized.
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Investments - The University is authorized by the University of North Carolina Board of Governors 
pursuant to G.S. 116-36.2 and Section 600.2.4 of the Policy Manual of the University of North Carolina 
to invest its special funds and funds received for services rendered by health care professionals in the 
same manner as the State Treasurer is required to invest, as discussed below.

Additionally, the University has also been delegated authority by the President of the University of 
North Carolina pursuant to G.S. 116-36.1 and Section 600.2.4.1 of the Policy Manual of the University 
of North Carolina to invest its trust funds in the same manner as the State Treasurer is required to 
invest, as discussed below.

G.S. 147-69.1(c), applicable to the State’s General Fund, and G.S. 147-69.2, applicable to institutional 
trust funds, authorize the State Treasurer to invest in the following: obligations of or fully guaranteed 
by the United States; obligations of certain federal agencies; repurchase agreements; obligations of 
the State of North Carolina; certificates of deposit and other deposit accounts of specified financial 
institutions; prime quality commercial paper; asset-backed securities with specified ratings, specified 
bills of exchange or time drafts, and corporate bonds/notes with specified ratings; general obligations 
of other states; general obligations of North Carolina local governments; and obligations of certain 
entities with specified ratings.

In accordance with the bond resolutions, bond proceeds and debt service funds are invested in 
obligations that will by their terms mature on or before the date funds are expected to be required for 
expenditure or withdrawal.
 
G.S. 116-36(e) provides that the trustees of the Endowment Fund shall be responsible for the prudent 
investment of the Fund in the exercise of their sound discretion, without regard to any statute or rule 
of law relating to the investment of funds by fiduciaries but in compliance with any lawful condition 
placed by the donor upon that part of the Endowment Fund to be invested.

Investments of The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc. and The University of North Carolina 
at Greensboro Investment Fund, Inc. are subject to and restricted by G.S. 36E Uniform Prudent 
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and any requirements placed on them by contract 
or donor agreements.

Investments of various funds may be pooled unless prohibited by statute or by terms of the gift or 
contract. The University utilizes investment pools to manage investments and distribute investment 
income.

Investments are subject to the following risks as defined by GASB Statement No. 40,  Deposit and 
Investment Risk Disclosures – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 3.
 
Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk the University may face should interest rate variances 
affect the value of investments. The University’s formal policy limits some fixed income holdings to 
those that have a high quality rating (AA/Aa or better) and those with a sufficient duration (four years 
or more) to provide effective protection in a deflationary environment. 

B.
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Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill 
its obligations. The University’s formal policy limits some fixed income holdings to those that have 
a high quality rating (AA/Aa or better) and those with a sufficient duration (four years or more) to 
provide effective protection in a deflationary environment.

External Investment Pool - The University of North Carolina at Greensboro Investment Fund, Inc., 
an External Investment Pool sponsored by the University, was established on July 1, 1992. The Pool 
is utilized to manage the investments for charitable, nonprofit organizations, associations, trusts, 
endowments, and funds that are organized and operated primarily to support the University. 
Endowment funds of the University, as well as those of The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc., 
represent the Pool’s internal participants. The Associated Campus Ministries of The University of 
North Carolina at Greensboro is not included in the University’s reporting entity and represents the 
Pool’s external participant. Fund ownership of the Pool is measured using the unit market value 
method. Under this method, each participating fund’s investment balance is determined based on 
the number of units of ownership purchased when joining the Pool. Thereafter, the pooled assets are 
valued monthly, and a new market value is determined. The external portion of the Pool is presented 
in the accompanying financial statements as “Funds Held in Trust for Pool Participants.”

The External Investment Pool is not registered with the SEC and is not subject to any formal oversight 
other than that provided by the Board of Directors. The Board is responsible for adopting investment 
objectives and policies, for hiring investment advisors, and for monitoring policy implementation 
and investment performance. As of September 1, 2013, the Board along with Cambridge Associates 
Resources, LLC, created a limited partnership, UNCG Endowment Partners, LP. As part of the 
agreement, Cambridge is the General Partner and The University of North Carolina at Greensboro 
Investment Fund, Inc. is the Limited Partner. The University of North Carolina at Greensboro 
Investment Fund, Inc. contributed its investment portfolio in exchange for its interest in UNCG 
Endowment Partners, LP. The Board’s primary role is to adopt investment objectives and policies and 
monitor the policy implementation and investment performance.

Cambridge Associates Resources, LLC serves as the outsourced chief investment officer for the Pool 
and provides the University with monthly statements defining income and fair value information, 
which is then allocated among the fund’s participants. There are no involuntary participants in the 
Pool. The University has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees during the period to 
support the value for the Pool’s investments. The annual financial report for the External Investment 
Pool may be obtained from the Finance and Administration Office, 254 Mossman, Greensboro, NC 
27402, or by calling (336) 334-5200.
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The following table presents investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at  
June 30, 2020, for the External Investment Pool. 
         

External Investment Pool
 

Non-Pooled Investments - The following table presents investments by type and investments subject 
to interest rate risk at June 30, 2020, for the University’s non-pooled investments. 

Non-Pooled Investments

 
 

At June 30, 2020, the University’s non-pooled investments had the following credit quality distribution 
for securities with credit exposure: 
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Total Investments - The following table presents the total investments at June 30, 2020:
 

 
 

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
To the extent available, the University’s investments are recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2020. GASB 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value as the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. This statement establishes a hierarchy of valuation inputs based 
on the extent to which the inputs are observable in the marketplace. Inputs are used in applying the 
various valuation techniques and take into account the assumptions that market participants use to 
make valuation decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit data, interest and yield curve 
data, and other factors specific to the financial instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data 
obtained from independent sources. In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s assumptions 
about how market participants would value the financial instrument. Valuation techniques should 
maximize the use of observable inputs to the extent available. 
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A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following describes the hierarchy of inputs 
used to measure fair value and the primary valuation methodologies used for financial instruments 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

	 	 Level 1	 Investments whose values are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical 
	 	 	 assets in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date. 
 
	 	 Level 2	 Investments with inputs - other than quoted prices included within Level 1 - that  
	 	 	 are observable for an asset, either directly or indirectly.

	 	 Level 3	 Investments classified as Level 3 have unobservable inputs for an asset and may 
	 	 	 require a degree of professional judgment.

The following table summarizes the University’s investments, including deposits in the Short-Term 
Investment Fund, within the fair value hierarchy at June 30, 2020:
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Short-Term Investment Fund - Ownership interests of the STIF are determined on a fair market 
valuation basis as of fiscal year end in accordance with the STIF operating procedures. Valuation of 
the underlying assets is performed by the custodian. Pool investments are measured at fair value in 
accordance with GASB 72. The University’s position in the pool is measured and reported at fair value 
and the STIF is not required to be categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

Debt and Equity Securities - Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy 
are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities.

Investments in Real Estate - The UNCG Excellence Foundation, Inc. currently holds four parcels of 
land that were gifted to the Foundation. Three parcels are life estates which were appraised at the 
time of gift and recorded at a value of $739,000. These properties will be sold at the time the donor no 
longer lives on the property. The fourth parcel was gifted as part of an estate and is valued at the tax 
value of $500.

The following table presents the valuation of investments measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV) per 
share (or its equivalent) at June 30, 2020.  
 
 

UNCG Endowment Partners, LP - The UNCG Endowment Partners, LP (the “Partnership”) will 
generally seek to achieve long-term equity-like returns through broadly diversifying by asset class, 
investment manager, geography, economic sector, and security. The Partnership seeks to achieve its 
objective by allocating its assets among unaffiliated limited partnerships, unaffiliated limited liability 
companies, unaffiliated private equity and/or venture capital funds, including offshore funds, 
other investment entities and/or separate accounts managed pursuant to investment management 
agreements (collectively, the “Underlying Funds”), as well as publicly-traded stocks, exchange-traded 
funds, mutual funds, bonds, and derivative contracts.
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NOTE 4 - ENDOWMENT INVESTMENTS

Investments of the University’s endowment funds are pooled, unless required to be separately 
invested by the donor. If a donor has not provided specific instructions, state law permits the 
Board of Trustees to authorize for expenditure the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, of the 
investments of the endowment funds. Under the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act (UPMIFA), authorized by the North Carolina General Assembly on March 19, 2009, the 
Board may also appropriate expenditures from eligible nonexpendable balances if deemed prudent 
and necessary to meet program outcomes and for which such spending is not specifically prohibited 
by the donor agreements. However, a majority of the University’s endowment donor agreements 
prohibit spending of nonexpendable balances and therefore the related nonexpendable balances are 
not eligible for expenditure. During the year, the Board did not appropriate expenditures from eligible 
nonexpendable endowment funds. 

Investment return of the University’s endowment funds is predicated on the total return concept 
(yield plus appreciation). Annual payouts from the University’s pooled endowment funds for 2020 
and 2019 are equal to 4.00 and 4.00 percent, respectively, of the average market value of the Investment 
Pool at December 31 for the past three years. Under this policy, the prior year spending percentage 
is increased by the inflation rate to determine the current year spending percentage. To the extent 
that the total return for the current year exceeds the payout, the excess is added to principal. If 
current year earnings do not meet the payout requirements, the University uses accumulated 
income and appreciation from restricted, expendable net position endowment balances to make up 
the difference. At June 30, 2020, net appreciation of $12,459,545 was available to be spent, of which 
$11,931,877 was classified in net position as restricted expendable for student loans and scholarships, 
research, instruction, and other as it is restricted for specific purposes. The remaining portion of net 
appreciation available to be spent is classified as unrestricted net position.

During the current year, the University incurred investment losses that exceeded the related 
endowment’s available accumulated income and net appreciation. These losses resulted in a reduction 
to the specific nonexpendable endowment balance. At June 30, 2020, the amount of investment losses 
reported against the nonexpendable endowment balances was $8,001.
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NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2020, were as follows:

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in the capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, is presented as follows: 
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NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2020, were as follows:
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - A summary of changes in the long-term liabilities for the year 
ended June 30, 2020, is presented as follows:

A.
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Revenue Bonds Payable and Bonds from Direct Placements - The University was indebted for revenue 
bonds payable and bonds from direct placements for the purposes shown in the following table:

B.

Notes from Direct Borrowings - The University was indebted for notes from direct borrowings for 
the purposes shown in the following table:

Annual Requirements - The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the long-term 
obligations at June 30, 2020, are as follows:

C.
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E. Terms of Debt Agreements  - The University’s debt agreements are subject to the following collateral 
requirements and terms with finance-related consequences:

Revenue Bonds Payable - The indenture agreements for the University’s outstanding revenue bonds 
of $270,545,000 contain provisions related to events of default and remedies. Significant to these 
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provisions, an event of default occurs when the University: (1) fails to pay the principal, interest, or 
premium on any bonds when due and payable, or (2) fails to observe and perform any other covenant, 
condition, agreement, or provision contained in the bonds or in the general indenture within thirty 
days after written notice has been given to the University of North Carolina Board of Governors by 
the Trustee of the bonds.

Upon the occurrence of any event of default, the Trustee may, or if required by a majority of the 
owners of the bonds, must, declare the bonds to be due and payable immediately. The Trustee may 
exercise all remedies available by law or in the equity provided under the agreement, including a sum 
sufficient to pay all matured installments of the principal of and interest on all bonds which will have 
become due otherwise than by reason of such declaration and such amount as is sufficient to cover 
reasonable compensation and reimbursement of expenses payable to the Trustee. 

Bonds from Direct Placements - The indenture agreements for the University’s outstanding bonds 
from direct placements of $16,257,000 contain provisions related to events of default and remedies. 
Significant to these provisions, an event of default occurs when the University: (1) fails to pay the 
principal, interest, or premium on any bonds when due and payable, or (2) fails to observe and 
perform any other covenant, condition, agreement, or provision contained in the bonds or in the 
general indenture within thirty days after written notice has been given to the University of North 
Carolina Board of Governors by the Trustee of the bonds.

Upon the occurrence of any event of default, the Trustee may, or if required by a majority of the 
owners of the bonds, must, declare the bonds to be due and payable immediately. The Trustee may 
exercise all remedies available by law or in the equity provided under the agreement, including a sum 
sufficient to pay all matured installments of the principal of and interest on all bonds which will have 
become due otherwise than by reason of such declaration and such amount as is sufficient to cover 
reasonable compensation and reimbursement of expenses payable to the Trustee. 

Notes from Direct Borrowings - The University’s outstanding notes from direct borrowings of $8,766,913 
contain provisions that in an event of default, the Bank may by written notice to the University, declare 
an amount equal to all remaining Base Rentals then due and payable to be immediately due and payable. 
The Bank may have reasonable access to and inspect, examine and make copies of the books and records 
and accounts of the University during regular business hours of the University if reasonably necessary. 
The Bank may also take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect 
the amounts then due and thereafter to become due, or to enforce performance and observance of any 
obligation, agreement or covenant of the University made provided under the Use Agreement.

Bond Defeasance  - The University has extinguished long-term debt obligations by the issuance of 
new long-term debt instruments as follows:

On April 1, 2020, the University issued $9,548,000 in General Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 
with an average interest rate of 1.72%. The bonds were issued for a current refunding of $9,475,000 of 
outstanding UNC System Pool Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B-2 with an average interest rate of 4.85%. 
The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments by $1,021,713 over the next six 
years and resulted in an economic gain of $967,180.

Prior Year Defeasances - During prior years, the University defeased certain bonds by placing the 
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on 
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the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are 
not included in the University’s financial statements. At June 30, 2020, the outstanding balance of 
prior year defeased bonds was $60,945,000 for the defeased General Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 and 
$20,815,000 for the defeased General Revenue Bonds, Series 2012A.

For certain prior year defeasances, the substitution of essentially risk-free monetary assets with 
monetary assets that are not essentially risk-free is not prohibited. At June 30, 2020, the outstanding 
balance of prior year defeased bonds for which substitution is not prohibited was $81,760,000.

Annuities Payable - The annuity and life income payable balance consists of 128 charitable annuity 
agreements and 13 charitable remainder unitrusts with a market value of $9.2 million. The $5.128 
million annuity and life income payable liability is the expected present value payable to donors 
based upon their age, the agreed-on payment rate, and the applicable federal rate.

NOTE 9 - OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The University entered into operating leases for real property and equipment. Future minimum lease 
payments under noncancelable operating leases consist of the following at June 30, 2020: 

Rental expense for all operating leases during the year was $1,202,230.

NOTE 10 - NET POSITION

Unrestricted net position has been significantly affected by transactions resulting from the recognition 
of deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and related long-term liabilities, as 
shown in the following table:

See Notes 13 and 14 for detailed information regarding the amortization of the deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions and OPEB, respectively.
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NOTE 11 - REVENUES

A summary of discounts and allowances by revenue classification is presented as follows:

NOTE 12 - OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

The University’s operating expenses by functional classification are presented as follows:

Included in the scholarship and fellowship function are student financial aid operating expenses for 
emergency financial aid payments to eligible students. These payments are for expenses related to the 
disruption of campus operations due to the coronavirus of $8,008,800 provided by the CARES Act - 
Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF). Because of the administrative involvement by the 
University in providing the student awards, the related program activity is reported as nonoperating 
Federal Aid - COVID-19 revenue and student financial aid operating expenses. Since the purpose 
of the student aid is not for educational or scholarship purposes, they do not affect the scholarship 
discounting adjustments reported in Note 11.
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NOTE 13 - PENSION PLANS 

Defined Benefit Plan
Plan Administration: The State of North Carolina administers the Teachers’ and State Employees’ 
Retirement System (TSERS) plan. This plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit 
pension plan established by the State to provide pension benefits for general employees and law 
enforcement officers (LEOs) of the State, general employees and LEOs of its component units, and 
employees of Local Education Agencies (LEAs) and charter schools not in the reporting entity. 
Membership is comprised of employees of the State (state agencies and institutions), universities, 
community colleges, and certain proprietary component units along with the LEAs and charter 
schools that elect to join the Retirement System. Benefit provisions are established by General Statute 
135-5 and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.

Benefits Provided: TSERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined 
as 1.82% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of creditable service. A 
member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member’s four highest consecutive 
years of compensation. General employee plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits 
at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age 
with 30 years of creditable service. General employee plan members are eligible to retire with partial 
retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable 
service. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of general members who die while in 
active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years 
of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. 
Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of 
the member’s contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.

Contributions: Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 135-8 and may be amended 
only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 6% of their annual 
pay. The contribution rate for employers is set each year by the North Carolina General Assembly in 
the Appropriations Act based on the actuarially-determined rate recommended by the actuary. The 
University’s contractually-required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 12.97% of 
covered payroll. Employee contributions to the pension plan were $5,416,450, and the University’s 
contributions were $11,708,559 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The TSERS plan’s financial information, including all information about the plan’s assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position, is included 
in the State of North Carolina’s fiscal year 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. An electronic 
version of this report is available on the North Carolina Office of the State Controller’s website at  
https://www.osc.nc.gov/ or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 707-0500. 
 
TSERS Basis of Accounting: The financial statements of the TSERS plan were prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions 
are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has a legal requirement 
to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the terms of each plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the TSERS plan, and additions to/deductions from the TSERS plan’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TSERS.
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Methods Used to Value TSERS Investment: Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes, the State Treasurer 
is the custodian and administrator of the retirement systems. The State Treasurer maintains various 
investment portfolios in its External Investment Pool. TSERS and other pension plans of the State of 
North Carolina are the sole participants in the Long-Term Investment, Fixed Income Investment, Equity 
Investment, Real Estate Investment, Alternative Investment, Opportunistic Fixed Income Investment, 
and Inflation Sensitive Investment Portfolios. The Fixed Income Asset Class includes the Long-Term 
Investment and Fixed Income Investment Portfolios. The Global Equity Asset Class includes the Equity 
Investment Portfolio. The investment balance of each pension trust fund represents its share of the 
fair value of the net position of the various portfolios within the External Investment Pool. Detailed 
descriptions of the methods and significant assumptions regarding investments of the State Treasurer 
are provided in the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
 
Net Pension Liability: At June 30, 2020, the University reported a liability of $54,952,129 for its 
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as 
of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018, and update procedures were used to roll forward 
the total pension liability to June 30, 2019. The University’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on the present value of future salaries for the University relative to the present value of future 
salaries for all participating employers, actuarially-determined. As of June 30, 2019, the University’s 
proportion was 0.53007%, which was an increase of 0.02353 from its proportion measured as of  
June 30, 2018, which was 0.50654%.

Actuarial Assumptions: The following table presents the actuarial assumptions used to determine the 
total pension liability for the TSERS plan at the actuarial valuation date:
 

TSERS currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. teacher, general, 
law enforcement officer), and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are 
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. 
The mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuations were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience review for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc cost of living adjustment amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and 
are therefore not included in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through 
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant 
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections 
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reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields 
projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity 
return projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income 
return projections. Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and 
historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 (the valuation date) are 
summarized in the following table:

 

The information in the preceding table is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting 
actuary and is part of the asset, liability, and investment policy of the North Carolina Retirement Systems. 
The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized 
figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-
term inflation assumption of 3.05%. Return projections do not include any excess return expectations 
over benchmark averages. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. The long-term expected real 
rate of return for the Bond Index Investment Pool as of June 30, 2019 is 1.4%.

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was calculated at 7.00% 
for the December 31, 2018 valuation. The discount rate is in line with the long-term nominal expected 
return on pension plan investments. The calculation of the net pension liability is a present value 
calculation of the future net pension payments. These net pension payments assume that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current statutory contribution rate and that contributions 
from employers will be made at the contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments 
to determine the total pension liability.
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the net 
pension liability of the plan at June 30, 2019 calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point 
lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:	
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: For the year ended 
June 30, 2020, the University recognized pension expense of $20,930,247. At June 30, 2020, the University 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 
 

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be included as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:  
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Defined Contribution Plan - The Optional Retirement Program (ORP) is a defined contribution 
pension plan that provides retirement benefits with options for payments to beneficiaries in the event 
of the participant’s death. Faculty and staff of the University may join ORP instead of TSERS. The 
Board of Governors of the University of North Carolina is responsible for the administration of ORP 
and designates the companies authorized to offer investment products or the trustee responsible for 
the investment of contributions under ORP and approves the form and contents of the contracts and 
trust agreements.
 
Participants in ORP are immediately vested in the value of employee contributions. The value of 
employer contributions is vested after five years of participation in ORP. Participants become eligible 
to receive distributions when they terminate employment or retire. 

Participant eligibility and contributory requirements are established by General Statute 135-5.1. 
Member and employer contribution rates are set each year by the North Carolina General Assembly. 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, these rates were set at 6% of covered payroll for members and 6.84% 
of covered payroll for employers. The University assumes no liability other than its contribution.

For the current fiscal year, the University had a total payroll of $224,259,735, of which $102,191,824 
was covered under ORP. Total employee and employer contributions for pension benefits for the year 
were $6,131,509 and $6,989,921, respectively. The amount of expense recognized in the current year 
related to ORP is equal to the employer contributions less forfeitures of $580,877 recognized during 
the reporting period.

NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
The University participates in two postemployment benefit plans, the Retiree Health Benefit Fund and 
the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina, that are administered by the State of North Carolina 
as pension and other employee benefit trust funds. Each plan’s financial information, including all 
information about the plans’ assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fiduciary net position, is included in the State of North Carolina’s fiscal year 2019 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. An electronic version of this report is available on the North 
Carolina Office of the State Controller’s website at https://www.osc.nc.gov/ or by calling the State 
Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 707-0500.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting: The financial statements of these plans were prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal 
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the terms of each plan. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of each plan, and additions to/deductions from each plans’ fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans.

Methods Used to Value Plan Investments: Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes, the State Treasurer 
is the custodian and administrator of the other postemployment benefits funds. The State Treasurer 
maintains various investment portfolios in its External Investment Pool. The Retiree Health Benefit 
Fund participates in the External Investment Pool. The Disability Income Plan of North Carolina 

B.
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is invested in the Short-Term Investment Portfolio of the External Investment Pool and the Bond 
Index External Investment Pool. The investment balance of each other employee benefit trust fund 
represents its share of the fair value of the net position of the various portfolios within the pool. 
Detailed descriptions of the methods and significant assumptions regarding investments of the State 
Treasurer are provided in the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Plan Descriptions

1. Health Benefits
Plan Administration: The State of North Carolina administers the North Carolina State Health Plan 
for Teachers and State Employees, referred to as the State Health Plan (the Plan), a healthcare plan 
exclusively for the benefit of employees of the State, the University of North Carolina System, 
community colleges, and certain other component units. In addition, Local Education Agencies 
(LEAs), charter schools, and some select local governments that are not part of the State’s financial 
reporting entity also participate. Health benefit programs and premium rates are determined by 
the State Treasurer upon approval of the Plan Board of Trustees. 

The Retiree Health Benefit Fund (RHBF) has been established as a fund to provide health benefits to 
retired and disabled employees and their applicable beneficiaries. RHBF is established by General 
Statute 135-7, Article 1. RHBF is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit healthcare 
plan, exclusively for the benefit of eligible former employees of the State, the University of North 
Carolina System, and community colleges. In addition, LEAs, charter schools, and some select local 
governments that are not part of the State’s financial reporting entity also participate.
 
By statute, RHBF is administered by the Board of Trustees of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ 
Retirement System (TSERS). RHBF is supported by a percent of payroll contribution from 
participating employing units. Each year the percentage is set in legislation, as are the maximum 
per retiree contributions from RHBF to the Plan. The State Treasurer, with the approval of the 
Plan Board of Trustees, then sets the employer contributions (subject to the legislative cap) and the 
premiums to be paid by retirees, as well as the health benefits to be provided through the Plan.
 
Benefits Provided: Plan benefits received by retired employees and disabled employees from RHBF are 
OPEB. The healthcare benefits for retired and disabled employees who are not eligible for Medicare 
are the same as for active employees as described in Note 15. The plan options change when former 
employees become eligible for Medicare. Medicare retirees have the option of selecting one of two 
fully-insured Medicare Advantage/Prescription Drug Plan options or the self-funded Traditional 
70/30 Preferred Provider Organization plan option that is also offered to non-Medicare members. 
If the Traditional 70/30 Plan is selected by a Medicare retiree, the self-funded State Health Plan 
coverage is secondary to Medicare.
 
Those former employees who are eligible to receive medical benefits from RHBF are long-term 
disability beneficiaries of the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina and retirees of TSERS, 
the Consolidated Judicial Retirement System, the Legislative Retirement System, the Optional 
Retirement Program (ORP), and a small number of local governments, with five or more years of 
contributory membership service in their retirement system prior to disability or retirement, with 
the following exceptions: for employees first hired on or after October 1, 2006, and members of the 
North Carolina General Assembly first taking office on or after February 1, 2007, future coverage as 
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retired employees and retired members of the North Carolina General Assembly is subject to the 
requirement that the future retiree have 20 or more years of retirement service credit in order to 
receive coverage on a noncontributory basis. Employees first hired on or after October 1, 2006 and 
members of the North Carolina General Assembly first taking office on or after February 1, 2007 
with 10 but less than 20 years of retirement service credit are eligible for coverage on a partially 
contributory basis. For such future retirees, the State will pay 50% of the State Health Plan’s total 
noncontributory premium.

The Plan’s and RHBF’s benefit and contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135-7, Article 1, 
and Chapter 135, Article 3B of the General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina 
General Assembly. RHBF does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. 

Contributions: Contribution rates to RHBF, which are intended to finance benefits and administrative 
expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis, are determined by the North Carolina General Assembly in 
the Appropriations Bill. The University’s contractually-required contribution rate for the year 
ended June 30, 2020 was 6.47% of covered payroll. The University’s contributions to the RHBF were 
$12,452,549 for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

2. Disability Income
Plan Administration: As discussed in Note 15, short-term and long-term disability benefits are 
provided through the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer, defined benefit plan, to the eligible members of TSERS which includes employees of 
the State, the University of North Carolina System, community colleges, certain participating 
component units, LEAs which are not part of the reporting entity, and the ORP. By statute, DIPNC 
is administered by the Department of State Treasurer and the Board of Trustees of TSERS.

Benefits Provided: Long-term disability benefits are payable as an OPEB from DIPNC after the 
conclusion of the short-term disability period or after salary continuation payments cease, whichever 
is later, for as long as an employee is disabled. An employee is eligible to receive long-term disability 
benefits provided the following requirements are met: (1) the employee has five or more years of 
contributing membership service in TSERS or the ORP, earned within 96 months prior to the end of 
the short-term disability period or cessation of salary continuation payments, whichever is later; (2) 
the employee must make application to receive long-term benefits within 180 days after the conclusion 
of the short-term disability period or after salary continuation payments cease or after monthly 
payments for Workers’ Compensation cease (excluding monthly payments for permanent partial 
benefits), whichever is later; (3) the employee must be certified by the Medical Board to be mentally 
or physically disabled for the further performance of his/her usual occupation; (4) the disability must 
have been continuous, likely to be permanent, and incurred at the time of active employment; (5) the 
employee must not be eligible to receive an unreduced retirement benefit from TSERS; and (6) the 
employee must terminate employment as a permanent, full-time employee. An employee is eligible to 
receive an unreduced retirement benefit from TSERS after (1) reaching the age of 65 and completing 
five years of membership service, or (2) reaching the age of 60 and completing 25 years of creditable 
service, or (3) completing 30 years of creditable service, at any age. 

For employees who had five or more years of membership service as of July 31, 2007, during the first 36 
months of the long-term disability period, the monthly long-term disability benefit is equal to 65% of 
one-twelfth of an employee’s annual base rate of compensation last payable to the participant or 
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beneficiary prior to the beginning of the short-term disability period, plus the like percentage of one-
twelfth of the annual longevity payment and local supplements to which the participant or beneficiary 
would be eligible. The monthly benefits are subject to a maximum of $3,900 per month reduced by 
any primary Social Security disability benefits and by monthly payments for Workers’ Compensation 
to which the participant or beneficiary may be entitled, but the benefits payable shall be no less than 
$10 a month. After the first 36 months of the long-term disability, the long-term benefit is calculated 
in the same manner as described above except the monthly benefit is reduced by an amount equal 
to a monthly primary Social Security disability benefit to which the participant or beneficiary might 
be entitled had Social Security disability benefits been awarded. When an employee qualifies for an 
unreduced service retirement allowance from TSERS, the benefits payable from DIPNC will cease, 
and the employee will commence retirement under TSERS or the ORP. 

For employees who had less than five years of membership service as of July 31, 2007, and meet the 
requirements for long-term disability on or after August 1, 2007, during the first 36 months of the 
long-term disability period, the monthly long-term benefit shall be reduced by an amount equal to the 
monthly primary Social Security retirement benefit to which the employee might be entitled should 
the employee become age 62 during the first 36 months. This reduction becomes effective as of the first 
day of the month following the month of initial entitlement to Social Security benefits. After the first 
36 months of the long-term disability, no further benefits are payable under the terms of this section 
unless the employee has been approved and is in receipt of primary Social Security disability benefits. 
 
Contributions: Although DIPNC operates on a calendar year, disability income benefits are funded 
by actuarially determined employer contributions that are established in the Appropriations Bill 
by the North Carolina General Assembly and coincide with the State’s fiscal year. The University’s 
contractually-required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 0.10% of covered 
payroll. The University’s contributions to DIPNC were $192,466 for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Net OPEB Liability: At June 30, 2020, the University reported a liability of $317,803,677 for its 
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability for RHBF. The net OPEB liability was measured 
as of June 30, 2019. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018, and update procedures were used to roll forward 
the total OPEB liability to June 30, 2019. The University’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was 
based on the present value of future salaries for the University relative to the present value of future 
salaries for all participating employers, actuarially-determined. As of June 30, 2019, the University’s 
proportion was 1.00445%, which was an increase of 0.05578 from its proportion measured as of  
June 30, 2018, which was 0.94867%.
 
Net OPEB Asset: At June 30, 2020, the University reported an asset of $442,296 for its proportionate share 
of the collective net OPEB asset for DIPNC. The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2019. The 
total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of December 31, 2018, and update procedures were used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to June 
30, 2019. The University’s proportion of the net OPEB asset was based on the present value of future 
salaries for the University relative to the present value of future salaries for all participating employers, 
actuarially-determined. As of June 30, 2019, the University’s proportion was 1.02502%, which was an 
increase of 0.04343 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018, which was 0.98159%.

C.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



56     THE UNCG FINANCIAL REPORT 2019-2020

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB liabilities for RHBF and DIPNC were determined by actuarial 
valuations as of December 31, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. The total OPEB liabilities were then rolled 
forward to June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.

The OPEB plans currently use mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. teacher, 
general, law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality 
rates are based on published tables and studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. 
The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through a review 
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, 
and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current 
yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and 
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projects 
are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. 
Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data 
analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. DIPNC is primarily invested in the Bond Index Investment Pool as of June 30, 2019.

Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in RHBF’s target asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2019 (the valuation date) are summarized in the following table:
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The information in the preceding table is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting 
actuary and is part of the asset, liability, and investment policy of the North Carolina Retirement Systems. 
The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized 
figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-
term inflation assumption of 3.05%. Return projections do not include any excess return expectations 
over benchmark averages. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. The long-term expected real 
rate of return for the Bond Index Investment Pool as of June 30, 2019 is 1.4%.

Actuarial valuations of the plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about 
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. 

The actuarial assumptions used for RHBF are consistent with those used to value the pension benefits 
of TSERS where appropriate. These assumptions are based on the most recent pension valuations 
available. The discount rate used for RHBF reflects a pay-as-you-go approach.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes of the plans are based on the substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between 
the employer and plan members to that point. Historically, the benefits funded solely by employer 
contributions applied equally to all retirees. Currently, as described earlier in the note, benefits are 
dependent on membership requirements. 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used for DIPNC include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuations were generally based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study prepared as of December 31, 2014, as amended for updates to 
certain assumptions (such as the long-term investment return, medical claims, and medical trend rate 
assumptions) implemented based on annual reviews that have occurred since that experience study. 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for RHBF was 3.50%. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from 
employers will be made at the current statutorily determined contribution rate. Based on the above 
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected to be available to make projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. As a result, a municipal bond rate of 3.50% was 
used as the discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability. The 3.50% rate is based on the Bond 
Buyer 20-year General Obligation Index as of June 30, 2019.
 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for DIPNC was 3.75%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



58     THE UNCG FINANCIAL REPORT 2019-2020

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the 
University’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) of the plans, as well as what the plans’ 
net OPEB liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point 
lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB: For the year ended 
June 30, 2020, the University recognized OPEB contra-expense of $4,915,726 for RHBF and expense 
of $420,624 for DIPNC, resulting in a total OPEB contra-expense of $4,495,102. At June 30, 2020, the 
University reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources:

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following 
presents the net OPEB liability (asset) of the plans, as well as what the plans’ net OPEB liability (asset) 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower or 
1-percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability related to RHBF and an 
increase of the net OPEB asset related to DIPNC in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT
The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These exposures to loss 
are handled via a combination of methods, including participation in state-administered insurance 
programs, purchase of commercial insurance, and self-retention of certain risks. There have been 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
 
Employee Benefit Plans

	 1.	State Health Plan
	 	 University employees are provided comprehensive major medical care benefits. Coverage is 
 	 	 funded by contributions to the State Health Plan (Plan), a discretely presented component unit 
 	 	 of the State of North Carolina. The Plan is funded by employer contributions. Certain plans also 
	 	 require contributions from employees. The Plan has contracted with third parties to process  
	 	 claims. See Note 14, Other Postemployment Benefits, for additional information regarding  
	 	 retiree health benefits.
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	 2.	Death Benefit Plan of North Carolina
	 	 Term life insurance (death benefits) of $25,000 to $50,000 is provided to eligible workers who enroll  
	 	 in the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System. This Death Benefit Plan is administered  
	 	 by the State Treasurer and funded via employer contributions. The employer contribution rate  
	 	 was 0.16% for the current fiscal year.

	 3.	Disability Income Plan
	 	 Short-term and long-term disability benefits are provided to University employees through the  
	 	 Disability Income Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC), part of the State’s Pension and Other  
	 	 Employee Benefit Trust Funds. Short-term benefits are paid by the University up to the first six  
	 	 months of benefits and reimbursed by DIPNC for any additional short-term benefits. As  
	 	 discussed in Note 14, long-term disability benefits are payable as other postemployment benefits  
	 	 from DIPNC after the conclusion of the short-term disability period or after salary continuation  
	 	 payments cease, whichever is later, for as long as an employee is disabled.

Other Risk Management and Insurance Activities

	 1.	Automobile, Fire, and Other Property Losses
	 	 The University is required to maintain fire and lightning coverage on all state-owned buildings  
	 	 and contents through the State Property Fire Insurance Fund (Fund), an internal service fund  
	 	 of the State. Such coverage is provided at no cost to the University for operations supported by  
	 	 the State’s General Fund. Other operations not supported by the State’s General Fund are  
	 	 charged for the coverage. Losses covered by the Fund are subject to a $5,000 per occurrence  
	 	 deductible. However, some agencies have chosen a higher deductible for a reduction in  
	 	 premium. The General Property Coverage Policy is the Fund’s basic policy and is used to provide  
	 	 insurance against losses caused by Fire and Lightning, Extended Coverage, Broad Form  
	 	 Coverage, and Special Form Coverage. However, the University is covered only for those  
	 	 named perils for which the University has paid a premium and for which the named peril is  
	 	 indicated in the Declarations. Extended coverage for buildings and contents has been purchased  
	 	 for the following buildings: All Housing and Residence Life buildings, the Chemical Storage  
	 	 Facility, the Baseball Complex, the Softball Complex, the Sullivan Science Building, and the  
	 	 Graphics and Printing Services Building. Broad Form Coverage has been purchased for the  
	 	 building and contents for the L.J. Kaplan Center for Wellness. All Risk Coverage has been  
	 	 purchased for the Baseball Locker Room and Training Facility, the Elliott University Center,  
	 	 840 Neal Street, 821 South Josephine Boyd Street, and the Chancellor’s Residence. Vandalism  
	 	 and Malicious Mischief insurance (VMM) has been purchased for the Elliott University Center.  
	 	 The University must fund the additional cost of the above stated insurance. 
 
	 	 All state-owned vehicles are covered by liability insurance through a private insurance  
	 	 company and handled by the North Carolina Department of Insurance. The liability limits for  
	 	 losses are $1,000,000 per claim and $10,000,000 per occurrence. The University pays premiums  
	 	 to the North Carolina Department of Insurance for the coverage.

	 2.	Public Officers’ and Employees’ Liability Insurance
	 	 The risk of tort claims of up to $1,000,000 per claimant is retained under the authority of the State  
	 	 Tort Claims Act. In addition, the State provides excess public officers’ and employees’ liability  
	 	 insurance up to $2,000,000 per claim and $10,000,000 in the aggregate per fiscal year via contract  
	 	 with a private insurance company. The University pays the premium, based on a composite rate,  
	 	 directly to the private insurer.
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	 3.	Employee Dishonesty and Computer Fraud
	 	 The University is protected for losses from employee dishonesty and computer fraud. This  
	 	 coverage is with a private insurance company and is handled by the North Carolina Department  
	 	 of Insurance. Universities are charged a premium by the private insurance company. Coverage  
	 	 limit is $5,000,000 per occurrence. The private insurance company pays 90% of each loss less a  
	 	 $100,000 deductible. 

	 4.	Statewide Workers’ Compensation Program
	 	 The North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Program provides benefits to workers injured  
	 	 on the job. All employees of the State and its component units are included in the program.  
	 	 When an employee is injured, the University’s primary responsibility is to arrange for and  
	 	 provide the necessary treatment for work related injury. The University is responsible for paying  
	 	 medical benefits and compensation in accordance with the North Carolina Workers’  
	 	 Compensation Act. The University retains the risk for workers’ compensation.

	 	 Additional details on the state-administered risk management programs are disclosed in the  
	 	 State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, issued by the Office of the State Controller.

	 5.	Other Insurance Held by the University
	 	 The University purchased other authorized coverage from private insurance companies  
	 	 through the North Carolina Department of Insurance. These purchased coverages are: “all- 
	 	 risk” for computers and miscellaneous equipment covering all perils including fire (replacement  
	 	 cost on listed computers and miscellaneous equipment, $5,000 deductible per event); study  
	 	 abroad accident and health ($250,000 per injury or sickness medical expenses, $10,000 accidental  
	 	 death and dismemberment, $50,000 repatriation of remains, $200,000 evacuation benefit limit,  
	 	 $1,500 bedside visit); international students accident and sickness ($150,000 maximum limit for  
	 	 medical expenses, $10,000 accidental death and dismemberment, $15,000 for repatriation of  
	 	 remains and $50,000 lifetime benefit for medical evacuation); robbery and safe burglary ($1.0  
	 	 million per event, $25,000 deductible); musical instruments (stated value cash replacement value  
	 	 with $500 deductible); fine art (property coverage – museum collection and temporary loan, limits  
	 	 of liability: $250.0 million limit at insured premises, $25.0 million at any other location, $25.0  
	 	 million limit in transit on any one conveyance, exhibition, and location, $70.0 million for  
	 	 TRIA (Terrorism Risk Insurance Act), and $250.0 million aggregate limit in any one loss or  
	 	 disaster; deductibles: $2,500); University intern liability ($2.0 million per incident / $4.0 million  
	 	 per year); business travel ($100,000 maximum medical expense, $10,000 maximum accidental  
	 	 death and dismemberment maximum benefit, $100,000 medical evacuation maximum benefit);  
	 	 boiler and machinery ($50.0 million equipment breakdown limit, $5,000 deductible); leased  
	 	 computer equipment (stated value with $10,000 deductible for medical equipment and $500  
	 	 deductible for all other); athletic accident (maximum medical coverage limit $75,000, with $0  
	 	 deductible, maximum death specific loss $50,000); physicians professional medical liability  
	 	 ($1.0 million per person, $3.0 million total); postal bond (coverage limit $30,000); cyber liability/ 
	 	 breach response ($5.0 million limit); non-physicians professional medical liability (individual  
	 	 policies) ($1.0 million per person, $3.0 million total); student health; camp accident ($250,000  
	 	 accidental death and dismemberment maximum annual limit); club sports travel ($10,000  
	 	 accidental death and dismemberment); volunteer liability ($1.0 million per incident / $3.0  
	 	 million per year); Railroad Underpass general liability coverage $2.0 million per year and  
	 	 aggregate limit; Railroad Underpass excess liability $1.0 million limit; Campus Recreation  
	 	 Adventure Program accident and health insurance ($15,000 accidental death, up to $15,000  
	 	 dismemberment, $10,000 accidental medical expenses); boat $1.0 million liability and property  
	 	 damage; fiber optics bond $50,000; Unmanned Aircraft Aviation insurance ($1.0 million  
	 	 liability limit).
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NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments - The University has established an encumbrance system to track its outstanding 
commitments on construction projects and other purchases. Outstanding commitments on 
construction contracts were $16,001,148 and on other purchases were $10,715,303 at June 30, 2020. 

Pending Litigation and Claims - The University is a party to litigation and claims in the ordinary 
course of its operations. Since it is not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these matters, no 
provision for any liability has been made in the financial statements. University management is of the 
opinion that the liability, if any, for any of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the 
financial position of the University.

Other Contingent Receivables - The University has received notification of other gifts and grants for 
which funds have not been disbursed by the resource provider and for which conditions attached to 
the gift or grant have not been satisfied or, in the case of permanent endowments, cannot begin to be 
satisfied. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
these amounts have not been recorded on the accompanying financial statements. The purpose and 
amount of other contingent receivables at year-end are as follows:

NOTE 17 - THE CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC EMERGENCY
In response to the coronavirus pandemic emergency, actions were taken by the University in March 
2020 to reduce the spread of the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) and to provide for the health and 
safety of students, faculty, and staff.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was signed 
into law. The CARES Act included various relief and recovery aid programs to address COVID-19 
expenses and the costs incurred and revenue lost due to the actions taken to reduce the spread of 
COVID-19. For the University, these programs included (1) the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 
administered by the U.S. Department of Treasury and made available directly to state and local 
governments, and (2) the Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) administered by the 
U.S. Department of Education and made available directly to universities and colleges.

The revenues from these programs are contingent upon meeting the terms and conditions of the 
programs and signed agreements with the funding agencies, are recognized when qualifying 
expenditures are incurred, funds are used for intended purposes, and other eligibility requirements 
are met, and are reported in the following revenue captions of the financial statements:

Nonoperating Revenue:

State Aid - Coronavirus Relief Fund - This caption includes funds received from the CARES Act - 
CRF that were appropriated by the State of North Carolina in House Bill 1043 to the UNC Board of 
Governors (UNC-BOG) and allocated to the universities to cover COVID-19 expenses. These funds are 
reported separately from Federal Aid - COVID-19 revenues due to the reporting requirements of the 
State of North Carolina. The CRF funds must be expended by December 30, 2020.
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In addition, this caption includes indirect awards from CRF funds appropriated for collaborative 
countermeasures and research efforts related to COVID-19.

Federal Aid - COVID-19 - This caption includes funds received from the CARES Act, other than the 
CRF funds appropriated in House Bill 1043, as follows:

The HEERF funds provided include: (1) a student allocation to provide for emergency financial aid 
grants to students for expenses related to the disruption of campus operations due to COVID-19, (2) an 
institutional allocation to cover costs associated with significant changes to the delivery of instruction due 
to COVID-19 including the recovery of revenue lost due to those changes, and (3) an additional award to 
address needs directly related to COVID-19. As part of the earned revenue from the HEERF (institutional 
allocation and additional award), the University reimbursed its auxiliary units for the prorate share of 
housing and dining fees refunded to students due to the actions taken to reduce the spread of COVID-19. 
The HEERF funds must be expended within one year of the grant award notification date.

In addition, this caption includes indirect awards from the Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief Fund program funds of the CARES Act for COVID-19 emergency expenses related 
to the NC Laboratory Schools.
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NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTIES

The University and North Carolina Agricultural and Technical State University have formed a 
jointly governed nonprofit organization, Gateway Research Park, Inc., which is also a component 
unit of the State of North Carolina. The purpose of this organization is to provide a collaborative 
research environment that fosters academic enrichment, research growth, technology transfer, 
commercialization, and discovery while encouraging and promoting regional economic development.

During the fiscal year, the University made payments totaling $2,075,840 to Gateway Research Park, 
Inc. These payments consisted of: $1,760,976 for the construction, maintenance, acquisition, movement, 
installation, and upgrades of offices, classrooms, and laboratories for the Joint School of Nanoscience 
and Nanoengineering; $284,700 for the operation and maintenance of University facilities at the 
Gateway Research Park; $25,000 for the annual management fee for the Gateway Research Park; and 
$5,164 for other facility use fees, services, and maintenance expenses.

Summary of State and Federal Aid - COVID-19 Revenue Activities for the 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020:
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NOTE 19 - BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

Condensed combining information for the University’s blended component units for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, is presented as follows:
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NOTE 20 - CHANGES IN FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the University implemented the following pronouncements 
issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB):
	
	 GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a Construction Period

	 GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance

GASB Statement No. 89 establishes accounting requirements for interest costs incurred before the 
end of a construction period. Interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period are to 
be recognized as an expense in the period in which the costs are incurred for financial statements 
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. Interest costs incurred before the end of a 
construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-
type activity. The requirements of this Statement have been applied prospectively.

GASB Statement No. 95 provides temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of 
the COVID-19 pandemic by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and 
Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018.
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*LAST SEVEN
FISCAL YEARS
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS
COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

LAST TEN
FISCAL YEARS
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SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS
COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

LAST TEN
FISCAL YEARS



THE UNCG FINANCIAL REPORT 2019-2020    69

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY OR ASSET
COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER, DEFINED BENEFIT OPEB PLANS

*LAST FOUR
FISCAL YEARS
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SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS
COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER, DEFINED BENEFIT OPEB PLANS

LAST TEN
FISCAL YEARS
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF UNIVERSITY CONTRIBUTIONS
COST-SHARING, MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER, DEFINED BENEFIT OPEB PLANS

LAST TEN
FISCAL YEARS
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